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... (gavel). . .
Meeting of the Water Resources Committee for
CHAIR MATEO:
October 13, 2004 is called to order. For the record Members present this morning, the
Committee Vice-Chair Member Charmaine Tavares; we have Members Carroll,
Hokama, Johnson, Molina, Nishiki, Pontanilla. Excused this morning is, is Member
Kane.
Any, anyone signed up to testify at this point?
MS. FRIAS: No, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MATEO: No. If there's no objections by the Committee, we will leave public testimony
open a little while longer in the event anyone comes and want to testify.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, this morning if you take a look at your, your
agenda items, we have three items on the agenda this morning. For your information all
three items for this morning is, are follow-up items. If you'll recall, a few months ago all
of these items were discussed in prior, in prior Committee meetings. However, at this
particular point we had indicated a follow-up towards the, the later part of the, the term,
so we would be able to get more appropriate updates on these three particular items.

ITEM NO.5:

WAIHEE AQUIFER STATUS REPORT (C.C. No. 02-165)

CHAIR MATEO: We're going to open up with WR 5, the Waihee Aquifer, the status report.
And at this time I would like to, well, before having the, Mr. Tengan, the Director of
Water start into his presentation, I also would like to recognize for the record Committee
staff Richelle Kawasaki and Tammy Frias, as well as Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi, Jr.,
present with us this morning. Mr. Tengan, if, if you can go through your presentation,
and then, again, if you could also share information, information with us regarding the
handout that you had provided for us on this specific item. Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I don't have a present, presentation prepared, but I
have circulated the monthly pumping report that we produce every month. In the
second section of the report, if you'll notice, the Waihee pumping for the 12-month
moving average is at 3.7 million gallons. As you, could, will, will recall the State Water
Commission wants, has ... not instructed, but kind of recommended that we stay below
the 4.2 million gallons south of Makamakaole.
And we have, we have achieved this, and we hope to expect to stay within the 4 million
gallons per day. With that, I'll be open for questions.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Tengan. Members, any questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Well, I am pleased to hear the comments from the
Water Director. Can you give us a comment on any responses in relation to the
June 14, 2004, letter from the Mayor to Mr. Peter Young? And I am referring to the
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Mayor's letter to Chairman Young as Chair of the Commission on Water Resource
Management urging designation.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, the State Water Commission hasn't taken any action on our request
to designate Waihee. It's still being taken at, under advisement. And, I believe, the
State Water Commission staff is gathering data to look at whether the aquifer should be
designated or not.
With regard to this Koolau Company's application for pump installation permit, I don't
believe that the State Water Commission has rejected this application.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr., Mr. Tengan, so that we can understand the rule, the, this
consideration requested by Koolau Cattle Company, does it also require County
approvals, and, if so, what type of County approvals would that be, please?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, there's no requirements for any well driller to obtain approval from
the, from the County. We do provide our comments when the applications are
submitted to the State Water Commission, and the State Water Commission normally
will send us a copy to, to, for us to comment on.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So if, if access would be, be new to the proposed site, I would
assume there'd be some grading and that, wouldn't that, Public Works then be involved
in grading permits and other concerns? That, that is not required if you're doing private
wells on private land?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't know what the Public Works' requirements are. However, to
prepare a site for well drilling is fairly small, I believe. Under normal conditions maybe
an area of about 10,000 square feet would be sufficient to set up a drill, a drill rig.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I was, you know, well, referring more to, like, from a
existing roadway whether it be paved or unpaved to the, to the site that may not be
currently accessed by, by any means that, you know, construction of a temporary road
to the site.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, I, I'm not familiar with the particular requirements as would be established
by Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So my understanding is that the State Water
Commission has fine, full and final jurisdiction over the consideration of a private well
request. However, is there a need for the Council as a legislative policy making body to
establish something in the Code, so that the County has some, what I would say,
required review and approval process?
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MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I don't see any harm that can be done by that, except that it might
slow down the process, but in the case of drilling wells in a sensitive area, I would think
that that would be beneficial to the County, especially if the County wants to, you know,
have a strong say into what, what's happening with, with its ground water development.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I, and I also ask that in the, in the numbers you present to
us, Director Tengan, these are the numbers that only go through the County system; is
that correct?
MR. TENGAN: Which numbers are these?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: In your monthly source reports.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, that's only our systems.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, and, and that's what the State is concerned of what we
pump from the aquifer for our distribution, transmission and distribution needs?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, we're required to report to the State Water Commission on a monthly
basis and other well users are required depending on the usage. I believe it's like
50,000 gallons a day or something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are the private well users required to also at least send their
pump, pumpage numbers to you, so that you can, your, your, your staff can properly
analyze impact on the aquifer as well as the well sites?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, there is no such requirement placed on private well owners within
the County. However, we do receive reports from Lanai Company, and we review
them. I, I believe that's primarily because of our involvement in the Water Use and
Development Plan for Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That I under, I, I, understand and I'm aware of, Mr. Tengan.
So thank you. I'm done for questions, Chairman. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, George, in just going over the report on the, it would be
beginning on the second section, North Waihee ending with Kanoa 2. In the third
column, December of '03, where the daily average was 804, what, you know, because
that is so different from every other monthly figure, was that just a month that had
particularly heavy rainfall, or is there some reason? Was the well down or, you know,
some pump broken, or something else that attributed that really low figure?
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MR. TENGAN: At first review, review here I would think, and as I recall, we did have a wet
winter last year. If you'll notice in the following month, January '04, the pumping at lao
was only 13.0 million gallons per day. So I would think that that would be the indication,
the wet season at the time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and along the same lines that Councilmember Hokama
was questioning too, with regard to the Koolau Cattle Company is, who is or what is the
Koolau Cattle Company? Is that just for another residential type subdivision in an
agricultural area, or are you not familiar with that company?
MR. TENGAN: As I recall, that subdivision is being called an equestrian subdivision, whatever
that means. I don't understand the meaning of it, but I do believe that homes will be
built on those properties, and there are some restrictions as to how much water,
domestic water that the individual lot owners would be able to use.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
George?

Do you know who the principals are in that company,

MR. TENGAN: My understanding is that it's being developed by Betsill.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That's, that was my understanding too. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Member, Member Johnson. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, George, just a question on the month of September
for Upcountry. The daily average was 1.7 million gallons. That's kind of a big jump,
unless those numbers that are shown are incorrect. September '04.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, just a reminder. We need to focus in on Waihee at this particular
point.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I'm sorry.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. No, Mr. Tengan, if you have that information readily available, you
could briefly just respond.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair, I'd be glad to respond to that. Last month we started to use
the Hamakuapoko wells and in order to keep the wells fairly free of bacti we decided
that we should use the water rather than just pump it into HC&S's reservoir.
And so we were pumping, we pumped the water from Hamakuapoko wells up to
Kamole Treatment Plant, and from there we pumped it up further to the lower Kula
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System. This also helped us to maintain and get some water back into the Piiholo
Water System, the reservoir at Piiholo.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any additional questions? If not, Members, if there's no
objections, we have one testifier who signed up to provide testimony on this item. If no
objections, I'll call Sally Raisbeck to the podium .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MS. RAISBECK: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My name is Sally Raisbeck. I live in Wailuku. I'm a
member of the Board of Water Supply, but I am definitely testifying as an individual, not
for the Board.
I wanted to, to say that I think both the Board, oh, the Water Board had a joint meeting
with the Planning Commission yesterday, first time ever that we met for a workshop
together, and I found that some of the Planning Commission Members are very
concerned about not having sufficient information that they feel comfortable about, you
know, approving subdivisions when they don't really know for sure whether water is
available or not. And they were quite concerned about this.
Also, the subject of the Waihee Aquifer was brought up, and the Chairman Randy Piltz
mentioned the fact that there will probably be an increase in private subdivisions that,
that drill their own well. And I said, well, this is why Waihee really should be designated,
because the County has no ability to stop people from drilling private wells and taking
water from the aquifer.
The, the, the State Water Commission traditionally has only controlled water when the
full designation process gives them that authority definitely. There are arguments, you
know, lawyers argue one side, lawyers argue the other side of almost any subject you
care to name, but they tend to interpret their power as only controlling in designated
areas. Some people think they could control even if it's not designated, but they don't
usually do that.
So I saw the letter from the Mayor urging designation of the Waihee Aquifer.
personally support that strongly for the reasons that only the Water Commission has the
power to control private wells in the Waihee Aquifer, and if that area is growing rapidly
and unless someone has the power to control private use, we may find ourselves in the
same situation we've been in lao Aquifer for different reasons, but still running right up
against the, the top, and not being able to get water from that aquifer.
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So I do urge you to talk with the Department, talk with the Mayor, consider designation,
the Council supporting designation there. And I'm very happy, the questions that
Member Hokama asked, I'm very happy to see the Council looking at its responsibilities
for water, which is, I think, the reason that the populace voted to put water under the
Mayor and the Council, because we hoped that you would indeed involve yourself in the
issues here, and in, take the responsibility for it. So thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Raisbeck.
Ms. Johnson.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sally, thank you for coming. I wanted to find out when you
spoke about the joint meeting or workshop, were there any concerns expressed about
potential over pumping and the damage that might occur to the aquifer itself, you know,
whether it's the lao or Waihee?
MS. RAISBECK: I would say in Waihee, yes. And, in fact, I don't want to quote Chairman
Piltz, but he seemed quite concerned about the fact that, that the private use of water
there, there's no way for anybody to control it. And I, I, he did not mention designation,
but I said, well, you know, that's why I think we need designation there.
And if the Council saw fit to support designation, I think it would add a great deal to the
Mayor's request that, and the Department's request that, that the, that the State Water
Commission establish the control of the water in that aquifer. I think it's necessary.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Has the Board of Water Supply or the Planning Commission,
that you're aware of, taken any position with regard to supporting that request?
MS. RAISBECK: No, I, the, the meeting yesterday was, was sort of a, a very initial getting to
know each other and, and getting a feeling for what the concerns are on either side.
We did set a date for meeting again in January, and I hope to see that, again, that the
Board of Water Supply and the Planning Commission will support each other.
They, they truly do want to have better information before they make, before the whole
thing comes before them, so that they in .. .if I could answer it at a little more length,
Commissioner Freitas made a suggestion that the approval of water should come
before it comes to the Planning Commission or, and Milton Arakawa answered that they
could perhaps administratively send it first to the Water Department.
And Michele McLean, who was there as a Member of the Water Board, suggested that
the, the Public Works Department when, when, when each project comes up they know
exactly where the sewage treatment capacity is coming from and what the status of all
the sewer treatment capacity is, and how much this particular project is asking for.
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And she suggested that it would be very good if that kind of presentation of data could
be given to the Planning Commission at the very start when a project first comes before
them. That would be very helpful to the ... so that, so that they did make a note that it
was worth pursuing to have both water and sewage treatment capacity, wastewater
issues come before the, the Planning Commission very early. They really want that
information.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Sally.
MS. RAISBECK: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sally, have you been able as a Member of the Water Board and
the Water Board, have you ever met with the Water Commission at all to, to have any
understanding on designation? Therefore, if that was accomplished, -then they would
really scrutinize more even private entities coming into and tapping off of an aquifer?
MS. RAISBECK: Well, I. .. well, two questions. No, the Water Board has never met with -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. RAISBECK: -- with the Commission itself. The Commission staff has attended meetings
on occasion and given us information. The, under the law and under the State Water
Code, when an area is designated, they have requirements on them as to what they
must do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MS. RAISBECK: Some of the, when, when an area is not designated, then it's, there's really
nothing, and they interpret it as there is really nothing they're required to do about
private. They're supposed to get reports of the private use within an aquifer, within all
aquifers, but that really isn't enforced. They have very limited staff.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MS. RAISBECK: And they just don't turn in their reports. The, the private landowners don't
turn in the reports, so that there's these huge gaps in the data. But under designation
they do check much more carefully.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. RAISBECK: And there are the legal requirements of what they have to, have to attend to.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm, I'm through with Sally.
MS. RAISBECK: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms., Ms. Raisbeck, real, real briefly. I, I, I think because, you
know, like, your, the Board has been looking at the multitude of questions regarding
water availability, limitations, et cetera. One of the focuses has been -MS. RAISBECK: I'm sorry. I can barely hear you.
CHAIR MATEO: -- one of the focuses has been designation.
MS. RAISBECK: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MATEO: As virtually advisers to the Administration, the Department, and, and the
Council, you know, and I don't want to put you in a spot, because you're really not
representing the Board, but has there been discussion from the Board relative to
forwarding a recommendation from the Board of Water Supply to this body
recommending and urging us to take a position on the designation of Waihee?
MS. RAISBECK: No, there has been no discussion at the Board. There has been no agenda
item regarding designation.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much, Ms. Raisbeck.
MS. RAISBECK: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: If there's anyone else, Sally is the only individual that signed up to testify. If
there's anyone else in the gallery wishing to do so, please come up now. Seeing no
one approach, if there's no objections, we will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .
• • .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY• ..

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Any additional questions for the, the Department? Mr. Nishiki -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: -- followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, when Jo Anne asked that question about. .. who was
that certain company Koolau, and then we find out it's a development company.
Mr. Chairman, 1 think we should take very seriously how people, because if we say
there is no more water to be given out because of the applications and knowing who is
waiting for it, what companies will do to circumvent and, and, and, and pursue their
development. And that's a prime example. And, and let's not be naIve about it
anymore, okay. And when I say naiVe, I mean seriously the fact that if this is a way in
which a, a developer can go about and stand to, or what 1consider circumvent, they're
going to do it, okay.
So now it is up to us, Mr. Chairman, to get smart and if we are being cautioned about
pumpage, okay, and yet somebody can go in that side and get a permit to drill and
successfully pull out water from the same aquifer that we've been cautioned to do so,
then we better get smart. And if designation will mean that now the State will scrutinize
the applications of private people wanting to drill and, and, and suck from an aquifer that
we have determined to be very sensitive, then I think we've got to find out from the
State Water Commission if designation means that there's going to be more scrutinizing
of private water drilling permits. Then that's the route that we need to take.
I, I, I. .. without asking these kinds of questions to the Water Commission, 1 think it
would be maybe premature of us asking also, just as the Administration has asked, that
we have designation.
But I would fall short of saying something without asking George two important things.
When we go through for a permit to drill, is it more stringent than a private developer
going through, okay? Finally, do you know the answer to the question about what I just
asked if through designation the Water Commission would scrutinize more any other
applications which have an impact on an aquifer that we consider to be quite sensitive -MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- if we ask for designation?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: In response to the first question about the permitting process, no, we and the
private well developers undergo the same process, so there's no difference.
With regard to scrutinizing well drilling permits in a designated area, I would hope that
the State Water Commission would put more scrutiny on, on those permits because of
its designation.
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If I may do so, in a designated area, and the State Water Commission is undergoing
that process right now, they've received app ... , water use permit applications from all
users. In the case of lao, it's primarily the Water Department and Kehalani that has filed
for water use permits. That's to determine the existing use.
Now between the existing use and the sustainable yield of the aquifer the Water
Commission can go ahead and issue permits for new uses. So that would be the 2
million gallon difference between 18, the point that which were designated and 20
million gallons per day, which is the, the sustainable yield as defined by the State Water
Commission today.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Finally, Mr. Chairman, you know, we often talk about
playing fairly, okay. Let's not fool ourselves, those of us that sit here as elected officials.
We talk about fair play in this situation. Now if we have the ability to control fair play,
then I think we should. And if a developer already knows that the County has stopped
taking permits for water use and he is way back in that, in fact, he can't even sign up
right now, then wouldn't you want to go and try to cut in line? And this is what these
people are doing, cutting in line.
And I think many of you were taught not to cut in line, because I was taught not to cut in
line, and then you know what I had to do? Go weed the, the, the school grounds or
wash blackboards, okay, for trying to cut in line. Similarly, if we intend to be also
watching about people cutting in line, Mr. Chairman, and I mean it seriously, and we
know that that's occurring, then we better in all our efforts try to communicate to that
person that controls the cutting in line, meaning the State Water Commission, and, and,
and bring out that fact that that is what is occurring, and they better look at it.
Because it is not fair that there are some people that don't have that ability and money
to, to, to drill, and it could be your uncle, it could be my enemy. But I will still play fairly
with my enemy in telling him somebody's trying to cheat on you. And with that
knowledge, Mr. Chairman, we are not really allowing fairness if we know what that climb
is and that person that's cutting in line, and not try to make this fairness game what we
know should be.
And so I urge you, Mr. Chairman, to find out, and if we need to draft a resolution or
communication after finding out, then you tell the State Water Commission if
designation is how the fairness can be stopped and not let these private people come in
and cut in line, then that's what we should do. Because all these other people that are
standing in line waiting, I think, are, for me is not fair. So if we're in that position, then I
ask you with urgency, Mr. Chairman, to move in a direction that we know is the proper
way, and if designation is, then that's where we should be going. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just a point of clarification, either the Corporation Counsel
or the Department. Whenever a private well is drilled I, I know when we drill a well, you
know, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands has first priority. How does that fit with
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands as far as whenever a private well is drilled
knowing that they need a permit from the State of Hawaii?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'm not sure as to how the State Water Commission looks at that. I
believe they probably just look at the well drilling permit and whether, whether that
aquifer can support that, that need. But I don't know if, I don't believe that any priority is
placed at the time of granting the well drilling permit on the, there's no priority, I believe
now, placed on the use of that water should it become a production well.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, can, can we send something to the Water
Commission in regards to that?
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Staff, the request was a letter to be sent to the State Water
Commission regarding process in the application for -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Private wells.
CHAIR MATEO: -- private well development. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Relating to Department of Hawaiian Home Lands.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, I, I would suggest make that clarification to, to say what is the
procedure on a designated area versus a non designated area, because then I believe
the criteria, criterias or priorities may be different.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Any additional questions? Mr.-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Ms. Tavares.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Tavares, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: No, I think it was partially answered.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, as, as in the description of your agenda this
morning your Committee staff has listed that under County Communication 02-165 that
the Waihee Aquifer withdrawals were at that point in time, my understanding is at 73.81
percent, and my understanding is of the sustainable yield as of the end of July 2002.
This morning we were given figures that showed reduced pumpage and that currently,
can we, can we use the 63.14 percent as the current percentage of withdrawal of
sustainable yield?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Director.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, as I stated earlier, I believe the sustainable yield for the Waihee
Aquifer is 8 million gallons per day. Our 12-month moving average is 3.7 million gallons
per day, so that's slightly less than 50 percent at this pOint in time. However, that
12-month moving average is subject to moving up and down depending on the demand
on, on the system.
So I, I really WOUldn't know how to answer that question right now-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: -- as to what percentage should we assign at this point in time ... to how much
water we're drawing from Waihee. If the Council wants to work with a figure, I would
suggest that the Council work with 4 million gallons per day south of Makamakaole.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, thank you. And, and that's what I'm trying to
understand, okay. We, we list percentages in the agenda, and, and so we're just, I'm
just trying to understand so if I'm asked by our community what is this 63 percent, I, I
would be able to explain. And yet our Water Director said currently the average is less
than 50 percent. Well, let me try and get a different understanding of the same area
then. The sustainable yield, Mr. Director, takes into account all users, including the
County, that withdraw water from a specific aquifer area such as the Waihee source?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, my understanding of the sustainable yield is that, you know, that's
the amount of water that can be drawn from the aquifer without destroying or creating
harm to the aquifer.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that would include all users, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Private as well as -MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- the County?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. But in our reports the, the Department is required to list
pumpage from our system, and I think part of the concern that I've heard from my
colleagues is what is the impact from the private side to this number, so that we can
have a better understanding of the percentage of sustainable yield, Mr. Chairman.
And I bring that up because, again, if the Administration is going to ask for designation,
then I would assume that when future considerations is proposed to them they're going
to ask for County comment. One of the ways for the County to respond is to be able
then to refer back to a water allocation resource plan that the Maui County Code
requires to be done or updated.
And the Council must need to take into account the General Plan, the Community Plan
of the region in addressing the allocation of water for specific uses. How are we then to
develop this policy if we're unclear of exactly where the aquifer is in the total withdrawal
of the aquifer as it relates to sustainable yield? We know what we pump, and we know
that according to Director we're under 50 percent.
Maybe we need to adopt specific policy language to have us be required to receive and
consider some type of approval system of non-government use. It's, whether within the
State Constitution or the Maui County Charter and in the Code on the purposes
regarding water resource, it's our responsibility to protect that resource. And the only
way to protect it well is to understand the accurate and current situation of stress and
pressure placed upon that system.
It's hard to just make a decision based on what the County is doing when we are well
aware that there are others drawing from the same area. And how are we then to make
a, a reasonable and fair allocation program if we don't have all this pertinent information
that I consider essential to good policy making?
So I ask that in, in a, in a manner that we're going to need the Department's assistance
and the Board to possibly develop ordinance language so that if and when designation
does occur, we will be able to respond fairly on whether or not certain requests should
be considered or not, and whether they fit within the allocation plan for the specific
region, Mr. Chairman. So thank you very much.
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CHAIR MATEO: Point well taken, Mr. Hokama. Thank you very much. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I have a question then of Corporation Counsel in light of
what Council member Hokama has asked. Is there anything that you know of,
Mr. Kushi, that would prevent our Committee from sending a communication requesting
that these reports actually be filed, or requesting Board of Water Supply to actually
compel people to file reports stating what their actual usage is? Or do we not have the
authority unless designation actually occurs? And I know we don't have the authority
once designation occurs, but at least we could ask that of the State.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, Member Johnson, clarification. These reports are the private well
pumpage reports?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, they would be private.
MR. KUSHI: I don't believe the Board of Water Supply nor the Department of Water Supply
has any jurisdiction or authority to request that kind of information. I do believe that the
State Water Commission or the Department of Land and Natural Resources requires
that. I don't see any, any reason why, and it's public records, it should be, should be a
public record. I don't see why we can't get reports from them.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and the reason I ask that, Mr. Kushi, is along the same
lines that Councilmember Hokama is really indicating, to protect the resource, which is
part of our charge and responsibility for all users. We on many occasions have passed
ordinances that are more restrictive than State law. And is there no legal way that we
could pass an ordinance, then, requiring that anyone in the County who's got a private
system be compelled to file those reports by ordinance?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, again, I, I think I understand your question, and it may come down to a, a
situation versus State versus County.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: And you mentioned the Constitution. I know the Council, the County as a whole
has a responsibility for, to protect any resource; however, I believe the State by
enacting this water, State Water Code chose to overrule any kind of municipal
jurisdiction. And I believe it, it would be deemed a State function once designation
happens.
So, again, and you should be advised also that once designation occurs no matter how
many wells you have in an area, an aquifer, the applicant still needs to get a permit,
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water use permit, which we're going through with lao now. That process alone can and
has evolved into contested case hearings. Prime example is the Waihole case.
So it's not a slam-dunk that even if you have a well that you can then after use the
water. And once designation occurs various priorities kick in: Hawaiian Homes, you
know, the native Hawaiian rights, municipal uses over private -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: -- private uses. So then all the cards kind of stacked together. It's not, it's not a
slam-dunk, though.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate you going over that, because that
actually addresses some of the issues that were raised by Councilmember Nishiki too,
because in that particular. .. (CHANGE TAPE) ... area that we don't have a legal leg to
stand on, so to speak, with regard to compelling any private reports.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Oh, one more thing. Again, you can also, you can always request these reports,
because they are, they should be required and they should be filed. That's one issue.
In terms of what Member Hokama said, that's very true in that once the area is
designated the State Commission looks at our Water Development Plans, and our
Community Plans, and our General Plans to get the basic scheme of each County. So
it's not a total loss. It's not a total state, you know, take it or leave it. I'm not sure what
stage our Central Maui Water Allocation Plan is. You may want to ask the Department.
This body can indirectly control because there's also a... requirement that the zoning be
consistent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: This body may want to think about, and I'm not saying to do it, but you may want
to think about your zoning powers that, you know, in any various properties that, you
know, water utilities or facilities is a special zoning category, then you can hear it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Can, and basically what you would be saying there is that if a
particular area is very sensitive in terms of water use, or if water's coming from a
particular area, then by coming up with a classification of zoning thereby we could
control what happens with approvals in that area; is that correct?
MR. KUSHI: I would think you would have to put this type of facility in all zoning categories.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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MR. KUSHI: That in any zoning category be it residential, ag, rural or what have you,
conservation, that they need a special type of permit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: Then this body can review it or the Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So by creating almost a category within each zoning
category like, I guess, what you're saying is a water use facilities category?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, something like you treat, treat it like a slaughterhouse.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: You need a special permit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So permitted uses within that area.
MR. KUSHI: This is just right off the top of my head now. I'm not telling you to do it, but. ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I think it's really interesting, Mr. Chair, because these
are the kinds of things sometimes that we struggle with, that how do you get to what
Mr. Nishiki is really talking about and also Councilmember Hokama? How do you get
control of something? We, we look at planning, we look at protection of the resource,
we look at what is best for the long haul, and we try to plan. And yet it seems so many
times we feel, well, we're powerless. We don't have authority in those areas.
So I think actually attorney Kushi really raises a good point because if we're looking at
other ways that we can actually have a role in seeing what goes on in these areas, if we
know that it's really residential housing that's going in and they're just simply saying it's
agriculture, which is happening all over West Maui, I'm really, I'm so frustrated that, you
know, we don't have more control over these types of things, and which reminds me
that Councilmember Nishiki has an issue in his Committee that would tremendously
help agricultural, you know, issues to address further the same kind of thing that's going
on in the Waihee area where we're drawing down the waters in the aquifer for uses that
are really not consistent with the zoning and what the purpose and intent of the ag bill
was.
So these are all things that I think we've got to avail ourselves of the tools, but on a
more, I guess, aggressive note I would say that listening to past conversations from the
U.S. Geological Survey, listening to the Water Commission in other forums that we've
had, I think what comes with designation is also the resources that they offer.
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Sometimes it's drilling of exploratory wells, sometimes it's monitor wells, other financial
resources. Even though they don't have a lot, at least they can apply for grants that
otherwise might be unavailable to us.
So I would really encourage us to take a position and really support designation,
because I think that at that point in time, once it is designated, then we can treat the
State as a partner in gathering this information. And, while we can't compel them to do
anything, at least we can then have our communications go directly to them, and they
have the oversight and the responsibility.
So I'd be really interested in exploring the issue that Mr. Kushi has raised and also with
regard to sending a letter. And if nothing else, just strongly urge the Board of Water
Supply and perhaps the, the State to look at designation on a more timely basis if
nothing else. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Member Johnson. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Riki, I think, I, I, I got confused when I heard your
question asked of George and George's response to you. And it has to do with,
Mr. Chairman, the Mayor's letter. .. June 14th, which is the last page in Item 5. And,
George, you need to clarify this, because I think it's real important, okay.
You told Riki when he asked you that the Waihee Aquifer, if I'm not mistaken, and I was
listening, trying to listen very clearly and precisely. You, you, you told Riki that the
sustainable yield for Waihee was 8 million gallons, okay, from what I heard you say.
Okay.
Now in the Mayor's letter, and I know that you don't have the letter also of the
Commission and why they had stated to us, but in the Mayor's letter in the second
paragraph it says, allowing--second sentence--allow, oh, first of all, it says in April 2004,
County opposed Koolau Cattle Company's application for well construction and pump
installation seeking 240,000 gallons per day from the Waihee Aquifer. Allowing
additional wells in the southern half of the aquifer is inadvisable, especially given the
Commission's instruction that the Department of Water Supply limit pumping to a
maximum of 4 million gallons a day, and then although well capacity is approximately 6
million. When asked by our Board of Water Supply on October 2002, hydrologist John
Mink cautioned that pumpage in the area between Waihee and Makamakaole Stream
should be limited to 4 million gallons a day as a long-term average. Okay.
George, what is our current pumpage in the Waihee Aquifer per day? And I was looking
at this graph, and I couldn't find the answer on that monthly source pumpage. So if you
could help me.
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MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, go ahead.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Nishiki, if you'll look at the right hand column under Total Last Twelve
Months.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
MR. TENGAN: The second bold figure, 3,722.
CHAIR NISHIKI: I don't -MR. TENGAN: It's the second underlined figure there. It's the, if you look on the left-hand
side, if you look for Daily Average and you go right across the page-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. TENGAN: -- 3,722, that's the 12-month rolling average for the Waihee Aquifer. In other
words we pump 3.722 million gallons per day out of the Waihee Aquifer over the 12, the
last 12 months.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: That's the rolling average.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, listen to this. Obviously, the Commission has told Maui
County, George, to not pump more than 4 million gallons a day. Wasn't that an
instruction given to you?
MR. TENGAN: That was-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes or no?
MR. TENGAN: -- that was the recommendation. It wasn't a mandate.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Then if we, if, if, if we did go over, what do you think
would happen?
MR. TENGAN: They used it as a trigger for designation -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it.
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MR. TENGAN: -- if we pumped over 4.0 -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So-MR. TENGAN: -- miltion gallons per day.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: -- so apparently, Mr. Chairman, that, and I don't know again,
and, and, and, and, and that's why it's so confusing, and I think that's why maybe when
Riki asked that question I got a little confused also. If George is saying that the ... how,
what would I use, the 8 million gallons is, is what the maximum that we have there.
Obviously, I don't think the Commission is accepting 8 million because they're telling us
to only pump 4 million.
So I think they have concerns that that maximum 8 million is not really a fact, and we
should ask that question. Because if that is a fact that they do not think that 8 million
gallons is what the maximum allowable pumpage is, then that, where we're pumping
we've already surpassed the so-called 60 percent of the sustainable yield is what I'm
saying. And I, and I'd like some clarification on that.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, when I stated that the Waihee Aquifer sustainable
yield is 8 million gallons a day, that includes the area north of Makamakaole Gulch.
When we talk about pumping 4 million gallons per day or less, we're talking about the,
the aquifer south of Makamakaole Gulch up to Waihee Stream.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. TENGAN: But the total aquifer has been assigned the value of 8 million gallons per day
as its sustainable yield. However, based upon John Mink's recommendations they're
saying that we shouldn't over the long run pump more than 4 million gallons per day
south of Makamakaole. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it.
MR. TENGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: And are you done, Mr. Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and, and, and, and, and I guess the, the question of why
Administration is, has some concern, where these people want to seek a well is the
southern half, is it?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, so there is definitely a concern in the southern half based
on the pumpage that we are now joined from the southern half based on the
Commission's concern?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, yes, we are concerned.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: Especially when the State Water Commission has, you know, recommended
or suggested to us that we don't pump more than 4, 4 million gallons per day out of the
southern half of the aquifer. And at that pOint in time, I believe, when the permit was
submitted by Koolau Cattle Company we, we were pumping about 4 million gallons per
day if not a little over that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. TENGAN: And so we couldn't understand the reason for the State Water Commission
granting that permit if they're telling us not to drill, not to pump more than 4 million
gallons per day out of that area.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it. And, and, and you heard George's answer when
Jo Anne asked him the question about that 3.7 that we're pumping now is because
we've had a lot of rainfall. And George's answer was--if, hey, I may not take it out of his
mouth--said, yeah, it probably was during a high rainfall time.
So knowing how Mother Nature acts, Mr. Chairman, and knowing what was just told us,
there are going to be drier times of the year, and meaning we may have less rainfall.
That aquifer may be going down and thinning. And if we indeed do pump more, then I
think we should have some concern. So I think this adds more credence to this
Committee and this Council writing that letter to the State Water Commission if we
agree as a majority that there should be designation.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members any-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I'm done.

- 21 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 13, 2004

CHAIR MATEO: -- any additional questions? Hear, hearing none, maybe if Mr. Tengan can
provide a, a closing statement as we leave this particular item? Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, thank you. I guess I would be supportive of the Council requesting
that the State Water Commission look at designating North Waihee because of the
granting of these permits. It's not only Koolau Cattle Company that has well drilling
permit and a use permit. I believe there is a couple of other wells out in the area, one at
Mendez Ranch and another one for that subdivision that was created several years ago.
There, there is a private water system out there. And we don't know how much water
they're using.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Thank you. Members, if there's no other questions with, without
objections, this Chair would recommend deferring of this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

(excused: OK).

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
ACTION:

ITEM NO.9:

DEFER pending further discussion.

DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY'S CORROSION CONTROL
PROGRAM FOR THE UPCOUNTRY WATER SYSTEM (C.C. No. 03-68)

CHAIR MATEO: Members, moving on to WR-9, Department of Water Supply's Corrosion
Control Program for the Upcountry Water Systems. I believe on your desk this morning
you all got a copy of a letter from Deputy Director Pearson regarding the same issue.
Mr. Tengan, if you would like to provide opening statements and/or, Mr. Pearson.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may, I'd like to call Jeff Pearson, Deputy Director. He's been
kind of bird-dogging this project and working with the community and working with EPA
and the State Department of Health in coming up with this program. So I'll turn the mike
over to him.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Tengan. Good morning, Mr. Pearson.
MR. PEARSON: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Committee Members. I, I understand you
probably received this just this morning, this short memo. I think most of you are pretty
aware of everything in this memo with what we've been going through recently with the,
working with the Budget Committee and the EPA grant, and discussing some of the
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issues with Upcountry, and the change of the additive from the C-9 to the phosphoric
acid and following the soda ash.
So I don't know, I don't think I need to read this, but if, maybe I should just, Mr. Chair, if I
could open up to questions. Would that be the best way to go about this?
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Pearson, yes, and I'd like to just start off by, I do recall your
presentation on the various Work Plans 1 and 2 in, in another committee. And just to
follow up on that, because only like, what, three months, four months had passed since
that last presentation. Are we currently on target? Because you did break it down by
month one, two, three, et cetera. Are we on target insofar as the Work Plan 1?
MR. PEARSON: Yes, yes, Mr. Chair, we're pretty much on target. This next budget, I mean,
excuse me, this next Council meeting on the 15th the budget should approve, hopefully
approved on second reading the, for the grant. The Boyle Engineering is on-board.
They'll be out here actually next week both for a conference and to begin the hands-on
work on the project.
We've met with Department of Health and we're already moving, beginning to move
forward on the lead testing. They're sub ... , subcontracting that out. So, I, I'd say we're
moving along at a, a pretty good pace.
In the paper this recent Monday we put out a letter discussing or requesting members
from the community to be involved in a community oversight committee. That's part of
the work plan. So we're gathering names. We've also sent letters to specific
individuals, plumbing firms, the community groups Upcountry, the Kalama
School. .. (inaudible) ... you know, people that are involved in water in the community.
So we hope to get responses from them fairly soon. Those letters went out this week.
So I feel we're on, on schedule. We're allowing approximately two years for this work
plan to be completed, and it, it should be on schedule.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members any questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Pearson.
Staying first, I guess, with your first transmittal having to do with the group. Following
up on your comments as far as the selection of individuals to make up this Review
Group, you have, how many, roughly how many people are you looking at, at, total, total
makeup of the group?
MR. PEARSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pearson.
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MR. PEARSON: Working with EPA, we're, right now we have a core group that, that worked
on establishing this work plan and that's approximately five of us. And this Community
Group we envision approximately 10 or 12. We don't want to get too big so it's
unmanageable, but we want to have it large enough so it's representative. So 12 is kind
of the magic number we're looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And how soon will you make the final selections of
this community group?
MR. PEARSON: The, the letter that we had sent out asked for them to respond by the 18th of
October, and also in the newspaper it stated the 18th. We'd like to get respondents so
we can get a list together, and then form a group at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And the group will, I guess, eventually be dissolved at what
point, and I guess you, you'll probably have a, I guess a report or something from this
group? How, what's the duration?
MR. PEARSON: Again, the duration will be throughout the work plan. So it will be two years.
They'll meet approximately every two months, we figure. We're going to have a support
person that's paid through the, through the grant that's described in here that will be
able to take minutes, support the group, printing, copying, that kind of thing. So, help
with the education, help set up if there's going to be County type of fairs, informational
fairs.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, I, my other questions relate
to the, Mr. Pearson's other transmittal. If you prefer, I can wait to ask those questions
after you entertain questions for this particular letter. What, whatever is your pleasure,
Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr., Mr. Molina, as long as it's relevant to the, to the subject matter of the
agenda on this particular WR-9, you're welcome to proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. Alright. Thank you for the leeway. Mr. Pearson, my
other questions relate to the up, the update of the Corrosion Control Program. In your
letter you, this is on the second page, this would be the first, second, third paragraph
where it's having to do with the results. It mentions the results were positive with bacti
counts greatly reduced and, and chlorine residuals higher.
You know, there, there's a statement in there that says generally positive. Can you give
me some specifics, because what I'm, when I see the term generally positive, it kind of,
you know, it's not convincing enough for me to, to believe that, you know, it's all, you
know, it's working 100 percent. Can you give us more specifics on that?
- 24-

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 13, 2004

MR. PEARSON: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I guess nothing is 100 percent. I, I could have left out
general, but I didn't want to be too, too positive, I guess. The, the generally positive is
referring to the four bullet items above there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. PEARSON: And those were, as I, as I mentioned here, kind of mandated by Department
of Health. In other words, they allowed us to switch to soda ash pretty much
immediately, but at the same time in their letter they said we had to do these bulleted
items while, as we switched. Nitrifica ... , I'll just go over the bulleted items real quickly.
We've performed two tests of nitrifica ... , to determine the nitrogen in the system. And
both tests turned out fairly well. The nitrogen wasn't there, which is a good thing. There
was only, they asked also for ammonia, if there was ammonia present, and that was
only present where there was chloramines in the Upper System, which is what you'd
expect. So that was positive.
The negative part about that or what we learned, I think, as I discussed later in, later in
this memo is that based on these nitrification tests, that's when we learned that the
chlorine residuals in the far reaches of the system were low, and the, some of the bacti
counts in some of the samples we took were extremely high. That doesn't mean there's
bacteria, but it's, it's a good indication. So that was maybe why I put the "generally"
there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. PEARSON: Uh, pH, a target pH of 8.8, we do that at the treatment plant, but as it gets
through the system especially if there's other reasons that add acidic nature to the water
that target, the pH is going to go down. So that's, we can't, it's very difficult to keep the
pH high through the entire system. So that's not a, a total win, I guess.
A Uni-directional Flushing Program, we're working very hard on that, and you'll hear
later we're going to actually ask for additional employees because it takes a large,
we've used a large group of our field employees to implement this Uni-Directional
Flushing Program. So that's mostly working, but it's, it's taking a, a strain on our, our
field operations.
Two weeks, the last one I, I, I spoke and responded to Mr. Nishiki at another, at another
committee meeting. We did, that's when we did, talked about those preliminary tests
that we did of the few homes chosen by Department of Health. And those tests were
really positive where there was only 1 out of, I think, 3D-something homes that showed
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the, the lead levels were above the action level. So it's mostly positive. I just didn't
want to get too -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. Thank you. And finally the use of chlorine in the
system. You've reduced the amount of chlorine now in the system. What other, are
there other jurisdictions, other counties that use chlorine in their water? They have
chlorine in their water system as well besides Maui County?
MR. PEARSON: Again, generally, I think, most, most systems use chlorine.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I mean, except we were at a higher level for a while, yeah?
MR. PEARSON: Yeah, for the, again, because we saw that there was the higher bacti counts
and there was low residual in the upper system, Upper Kula System, we increased the
chlorine, well we changed from chloramine to chlorine and increased the dosage from
the usual approximately 1.5 to 2 up to the 3 parts per million. Again, only in that upper
system to kind of give a, a cleansing, or a kind of a cleaning of the system to help
remove the, the potential bacteria problems.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. PEARSON: So we lowered it back down now to normal operating levels for the chlorine
in the upper system. We have not turned, we've returned back to chloramines yet in the
upper system.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Okay. Thank you. Yeah, I haven't heard anything
negative thus far about, you know, the increase in the chlorine. And finally you have
the, the Department of Health involved, I guess, with the voluntary lead testing and the
voluntary testing on expectant mothers. The, is, is the State contributing any funding
towards this project, or this is just all Federal funding and Maui County involved?
CHAIR MATEO: Department.
MR. PEARSON: Yeah, this, in, including the Department of Health for this voluntary lead
testing, again, is part of the work plan. It's part of the grant. So described in the work
plan it discusses the fees that Clinical Labs are going to charge for an estimated
number of people that are going to come in and get the testing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. PEARSON: So they don't need to supply funds, because the funds are provided as part
of the work plan, as part of the grant.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Jeff, have the complaints that you were getting in the early
part when, you know, all the problems were occurring with rashes and everything, have
those subsided at all, or is the Department of Health still monitoring that?
MR. PEARSON: That's a tough question. The few that I've heard the complaints have seem
to be, being less complaints. I talked to one person yesterday that had a lot of trouble
Upcountry with rash and so forth. He just, we just passed, and he said, you know, it's
much better now. I take showers. I feel comfortable. But people don't run to you and
tell you everything's better, they just take showers now.
I think Lorrin, Dr. Lorrin Pang, I read a recent e-mail that he feels that the complaints
have been less. He thinks that the, the situation is improved. I know some of our Board
Members may not agree to that. They might look at different reasons for different
complaints that may be coming up. So it, it's a tough question. I feel it's improved, but,
you know, I, I might have a biased opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And will the, will we at some point as a Council Committee,
will we receive either through Dr. Pang or through you some kind of an update on those
issues regarding the complaints that we've been receiving, or is it just something that
DOH is going to monitor?
MR. PEARSON: Mr., Mr. Chairman, I'm sure DOH is monitoring that. I don't know how the
format of the updates are going to occur. I know that when we had our last meeting
Upcountry that there was a lot fewer people in the, in the, in the meeting, so that, that
gives you some indication. But I don't think there's any real formal update as far as
complaints.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and I just, Mr. Chair, I would like, you know, even
if it's just sending out a simple request to Dr. Pang just asking for some kind of a letter
response or whatever as to what's going on, because I think that that's primarily why we
got so involved in this issue to begin with is because of the health concerns that were
being raised by the community.
MR. PEARSON: Mr. Chair, I know that, I think it was in a recent e-mail that Dr. Pang had a
certain small group he was following. There was, like, 30 or so, and he broke that group
down into, like, 15 felt they've improved, 8 or whatever felt that there was no
improvement, and 7 felt that it was worse. So he had, he had some numbers for a very
small group. I don't think it was a statistical representative, but he did have some that
he was following.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any additional questions? Hearing none, Mr.,
Mr. Pearson, would you like to provide a closing, closing statement?
MR. PEARSON: Well, the only thing I'd like to say is I, I hope that the Council can be patient,
and I think you're going to be fully informed of what's going on with this grant and with
the work plan as we move forward. I feel confident that it's going to provide results.
That we're going to definitely get information on the system. We're going to help with
the, you know, to get testing for the children.
I feel we're going to have a good community oversight, so there's, you know, there's not
going to be any implication of, you know, going behind the scenes. And we have
support from DOH and from EPA. So I feel positive at the outset of this that it's, it's
going to produce results that will be shared with you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pearson. Members, if there's no additional questions, the,
and if there's no objections, the Chair would like to defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: RC, DK, WN).
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR MATEO: The last item for the day, Members, maybe if you've reached that point
maybe we should, at the call of the Chair a five-minute recess.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: 10:30.
CHAIR MATEO: 10:30? 10:30 is fine. Thank you. Recess ... . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:23 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:34 a.m.

CHAIR MATEO: ... (gavel). .. Meeting of the Water Resources Committee will reconvene.
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ITEM NO. 12:

STATUS OF THE POOKELA WELL (C.C. No. 04-157)

CHAIR MATEO: Members, moving on in our agenda. We have Item WR-12, the status of
Pookela Well. At this point, we'll ask the Department to give us a status report.
Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This morning I, I had distributed a status report from our
Engineering Program Manager. The project is currently out to bid. We advertised for
bids on September 9, and we expect to receive the bids by, well, bid opening will be on
the 19th, which is a Tuesday.
The base bid for the project is to, for two different kinds of pumps. Under the basic bid
we have a 1.4 million, no, 1,400 gallon gpm pump, which should be able to produce up
to 2 million gallons per day based on a 24-hour pumping. The alternative bid is to put in
a, a smaller capacity pump, 980 gallons per minute with a 1.4 million gallons per day
capacity.
Let's see, we anticipate on completion on ... we anticipate if the project is put out on a
base bid -CHAIR MATEO: Excuse me, Mr. Tengan, if you can speak a little louder. We're having a little
difficulty hearing, hearing you.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If we go with the base bid on the project, we expect to
have the well completed by December 2005. If we go with the alternate bid, which is a
smaller pump, that's expected to come on line in March of 2006. This is far beyond the
time that I had originally reported to the, to the Council as to when we had expected to
get the well on line. I believe the last time I reported it was, like, August 2004.
Basically, this project has been delayed somewhat because we had to do nearly a
complete redesign of the project in, in doing the 2 million gallons per day pump. And
the long, and the long ... well, for the alternate bid it's March 2006 because of the long
lead time we would need, or the contractor would need to order the pump, which is
currently produced in Germany.
As far as the construction estimates, on the base bid we ex ... , we have a current
engineer's estimate of $2.1 million. For the alternate bid, we, we expect the bids to
come in around $1.6 million. With that, Mr. Chair, I'll open myself to questions.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Tengan.
Ms. Johnson.

Members, any questions for the Department?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question was in the first part of the sentence the base bid
is for an exotic deep well. Can you explain what that is? It's, it certainly sounds a little
odd way to describe a well.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Could you repeat the question, please?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I was hoping not to have to, but the base bid is for an exotic
deep well.
MR. TENGAN: Oh, I hadn't caught that, yeah. I, I'll go back and check with Alva as to what he
means by exotic there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I'm assuming and Councilmember Tavares is just,
you know, confirming what I sort of said. Because it's two pumps instead of one that
would ordinarily not be the kind of -MR. TENGAN: Right, I guess this is a different or new approach in, in developing pumps.
Apparently, in this case here the pump will include having two motors rather than only a
single motor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. I, I just had not ever heard that terminology before.
That's why I was curious.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Opposite of normal.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: An abnormal well. I guess it would be another way of saying.
You know, they kind of wonder what we're doing in the Board of Water Supply,
Mr. Tengan.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair, for Mr. Tengan. The bids have gone out
and we've tended to put in pumps. These pumps all go in the bottom of the well, right?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Alright. Just looking at some of the trade publications that
happened to come across my desk, I see where they have a lot of pumps now at the top
of the well, head well. What. .. we don't use those? Why, because it's too deep or... ?
It seems like according to some of the, well, the literature, and, of course, they're trying
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to sell this, so they make it sound good. But it does seem like it saves a lot of problems
if you have a pump on the top instead of on the bottom.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I believe Councilmember Carroll is referring to the motor. In some
cases the motor sitting on top, above ground. In this case we're looking at having
sub ... , submersible pumps, which basically means that the pump and motor will be
down at the bottom of the, of the well.
One big consideration for going with a, with a submersible pump in this case is because
there are residences in the area, and if we put a pump where the motor is situated
above ground, that could create problems with, you know, having too much noise during
the nighttime when the pump is running. And we may have to deal, or we would have to
deal with a lot of noise complaints.
The other consideration is that when the, when the motor is put above ground, the way
the well would be constructed is to have a shaft going from that motor all the way down
to the pump itself to turn the pump to bring the water up above ground. And this could
create mechanical problems in that you would be dealing with a, with in this case here a
shaft of about 1,400 feet long going down to the bottom of the well.
In the case of submersible pumps all you have is the pump and the motor going down to
the bottom of the well, and basically a cable holding that, the pump and motor up in
place. And the water will just be pumped up the, up the shaft rather than having a, you
know, a long shaft turning the pumps.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr., Mr. Pontanilla followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. As far as the life expectancy for either
pumps, do you have any idea how long ... pumps would last?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I think industry-wise, you know, the pump should last, or the life
expectancy of a, of a pump would be about seven years. In this case here the
difference between the basic bid and the alternate bid, in order to achieve that 2 million
gallons per day, because of the size of the hole, we had to put in a smaller pump than
would be necessary with a single motor to achieve that 2 million gallons per day.
And since the pump itself would be smaller, it would have to work at a higher revolution.
In this case, I believe it's twice the revolutions as compared to the ultimate bid. So the
life expect..., expectancy on the basic bid would be somewhat shorter than the alternate
bid.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Should anything happen to that pump, you know,
based on the 2 million gallon per day, you know, how long would it take to replace that
pump? Or in, in the case knowing that the pump life expectancy is seven years, is the
Department going to be, like, preplanning in regards to the possibility of that pump going
out of service?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, we do have a, a preventive maintenance program where, where we
monitor the efficiencies of the pump. And based on that, when we see a decline in the
efficiency of the pump, then it kind of indicates that we should start making plans to
have it replaced. And if we're lucky we can catch the, you know, do the replacement
before the pump completely breaks down.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Tengan, as a follow up
to Member Pontanilla's question regarding the base, base bid for the exotic deep well
pump, the risk that's mentioned, is that what that is? I guess the, the risk of a... of, of
breakdown sooner than, I guess, the alternate bid. Is that what, what's involved?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct. However, I should mention that the lead time to order a pump
in, in this case here, we expect it to be about 16 weeks. In other words, if the pump
breaks down and it's no longer operable, it would take us 16 weeks to get a
replacement pump ordered and delivered.
In the case of the smaller pump this has to be, oh, this is built in Germany and for some
reason it takes about a year for us from the time we order a pump to receive that pump.
I don't know what the reason is, but that's what, that's the information we got from the
manufacturer.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. The, the base bid that, that, that pump is made, I
guess, in America?
MR. TENGAN: It could be made in America, Japan, or maybe even China.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. And it takes considerably more electricity and
power as well too, yeah, so. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Members, any additional questions? Mr. Tengan,
just, just one question. As you, as the, you, you prepare for the bid process, and, and
then, you know, say you, when you get the pumps, at what date or at what timetable are
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you working with Maui Electric Company so the scheduling of the power can be
installed as the pump is being completed?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair. We are working closely with Maui Electric. Maui Electric has
asked us to assist them with the obtaining of the easements necessary to put in the
electric poles along Piiholo Road. That would probably be coming before the Council at
some point in time.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you and-MR. TENGAN: So if the Council could expedite that permit or easement, the Department
would really appreciate that.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director. And I, I think Member Pontanilla and Molina
brings up, you know, major concerns about the maintenance and the security in
knowing that the pump that will be installed will be maintained regularly so that there is
no breakdown. But mechanicals are always something that is really unantiCipated.
So, you know, as we prepare for the installation of this particular development of the
well, I'm kind of hoping that the Department is, in fact, also preparing for, I, I guess, you
know ... (CHANGE TAPE) .. . break, breaks in services, because the securing of a well not
only is it time consuming to order it out, but also costly. So the potential of a backup
process for the well would be an important part in assuring that the services does not
come with a break.
Thank you very much. Members-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would like to ask the Director, if there was no changes from
the original specifications of the original bid that, proposals that was sent out for
consideration, when would that well have come on line if everything proceeded
accordingly with the initial exploratory well drilling, and then finding sufficient waters and
clearance from Commission on Water Resources, construction? When would have that
well been on line?
MR. TENGAN: My estimation, Mr. Chair, at the time that we're looking at only doing on the
smaller pump. I think we had estimated or projected that that well would be, would have
been on line in June, between June and August of last year. I mean, I mean next year.
CHAIR MATEO: '05.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: '05, 2005, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So now we're looking at half a year to a year away,
additional?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct. Between six months and nine months.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Since Department of Management decided to get
involved with this project with your Department, and now we have some delays in
changing of scope, the environment of construction projects and bidding has changed
also.
In, in this, this October 13th, communication from Mr. Nakamura to you, Mr. Director,
regarding the opening date next Tuesday, October 19th, if things go according to how I
have been informed of the recent last few months, is the amount of budgeted funds
available sufficient to cover this project?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I, that would be a difficult question to answer. We can only wait and
see what the bids come in at. But as Councilmember Hokama has stated, it could
come, possibly come in at much higher than the $2.1 million we're estimating at the time
or at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If the number is .. .I don't want to even put an estimate right
now, but let's say even 30 percent higher, is your Department ready to make
recommendations on how to either adjust funding, or what will happen to, again, the, the
development of the final stages of Pookela's construction? What, what do you think is
the setback and, and, and how would your Department try and address those issues?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, I'm sure because of the, our '04 budget of $22 million and our
expected production level, let's say, of getting about $15 million done out of that budget,
we could come in for a budget amendment looking at other projects that would, would
be lapsing on December 31 st, to help us finance any unexpected increases in cost.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, and, and thank you for that comment. And, and I just
wish to share with the Members that after October 19, the Department makes a
analysis, send communication to the Mayor's office for posting. I don't believe Budget
and Finance has a time to take up an amendment this calendar year, which would mean
it would be in the new Council in a new term. And we're looking at possibly, what,
another four, six months delay?
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My disappointments, Chairman. I would have rather had hoped the Department would
have convinced Management Department to have gone in ahead with their new
specifications and, and, and my position, Chairman, is that it is better to get this well on
line as soon as possible than now continue to face additional pressures and stresses
that this March 2006 may not be a real completion date. And, again, if the Department
is going to transfer funds to take the over, or unbudgeted amount by bid requirements,
then what other projects get delayed and shifted in priority?
And where does this fit in the big picture of what we're trying to accomplish? Since at
this pOint in time, yet, Mr. Chairman, we're unclear in the direction and vision of the big
picture on where water, domestic water for potable use for our residents is going to go.
And how are we to prepare the finances of the County to address this in response to
comments for me to consider rate increases?
You know, I wish the Department well, because eventually it comes a point when is it
worth that big extra to do a project? Maybe this would have been in construction and
ready for completion in the near future if we did it the original way, Chairman.
So I just bring up points, Chairman, that I know the Director is well aware of. He
understands the construction climate, the bidding climate including a project the
Department has just put out, Members, that no one bid ... because everyone's busy.
And to have a subcontractor even consider an amount bigger than the total budget for a
project, what is a general contractor to do? What is the Department to do?
And I, I thank you for not ruling me out of order for sharing my serious concerns and
frustrations about the continued delay of getting something we know is there. It's been
accepted to be able to move for a construction of a pump to deliver water to our
Upcountry community, and it keeps getting delayed, Chairman. We made funding
available years ago. I expected it to be completed, and now we are still yet in bid
processing. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Hokama. And, and I'm sure the Department is
well aware that the urgency of Pookela has been one that, that I dare to say all of the
Members of this Committee has been on the Department time and time again letting
them know that, you know, you've got to complete this project.
You know, this, this whole project was in the, in the front page of The Maui News almost
two years ago saying it's going to happen. Well, we've created the false hope for our
Upcountry people for, you know, time that has just, you know, like, been wasted really
for them in waiting for water to be delivered to them. And the wait has got to end some
time.
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And I believe the Director at this point, you know, will take an earnest effort in trying to
help us expedite the process, and do what he can to work with Administration and move
this project forward in, in a much faster time frame.
Members, are there any additional questions for the, the Department? Hearing none, it
is the Chair's recommendation to defer this item if there's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: DK, WN).
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. And any announcements? The Chair would like to
take this time to recognize our colleague from Hana, and we, we say to you hauoli la
hanau. I believe it was 25 all over again.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Sixteen.
CHAIR MATEO: Sixteen. There you go. Members, this meeting is adjourned .... (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN: 10:59 a.m.

APPR~
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------

--.

NY A. MATEO, Chair
Water Resources Committee

Transcribed by: Jessica Cahill
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